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 VanRIMS No.: 11-3500-10 
 Meeting Date: November 2, 2006 
 
 
TO: Standing Committee on Planning and Environment 

FROM: Director of Current Planning 

SUBJECT: RM-5A - Multiple Dwelling Development - Rate of Change 
1550 Harwood Street - DE410015 

 
RECOMMENDATION 

THAT Council confirm a 12-month Rate of Change of 0.043 percent is acceptable for this  
West End neighbourhood, and that the guidelines regarding “Rate of Change” are not 
applicable. 

 
GENERAL MANAGER'S COMMENTS 

The General Manager of Community Services RECOMMENDS approval of the foregoing. 

 
COUNCIL POLICY 

On October 26, 1989, Council adopted the RM-3, RM-5, RM-5A, RM-5B, RM-5C and RM-6 
Multiple Dwelling Guidelines for any proposed multiple dwelling with a floor space ratio in 
excess of 1.0 or a height of greater than 12.2 metres (18.3 metres in RM-5A). 

PURPOSE 

This report seeks Council’s advice on a conditional approval use Multiple Dwelling 
development application located in the RM-5A Zoning District. 
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BACKGROUND 

As previously reported to Council, there is little guidance available to determine what is 
considered a reasonable Rate of Change.  However, in reporting on March 8, 1990, Council 
agreed that a two percent Rate of Change was reasonable and that a ratio in excess of two 
percent should initiate incremental application of the mitigating criteria contained in the 
guidelines. 
 
On April 4, 1995, Council approved amendments to the Zoning and Development By-law 
whereby individual applications need not be reported to Council unless approval would result 
in a cumulative loss of residential rental units, during the 12 months prior to development 
application submission, exceeding two percent in the West End RM Districts. 
 
On November 5, 1996, when considering a report regarding a development at 1000 Broughton 
Street where 16 residential units were to be demolished, Council resolved that “pending 
Council consideration of a report from staff on how occupancy rates are measured and on 
options for a “no net loss” policy with respect to rental housing stock, the Rate of Change in 
the West End be amended to zero percent”, and all applications involving the loss of 
residential rental units be reported to Council. 
 
On February 15, 2000, when considering the last development application that involved 
demolition of rental units in the West End (1930 Haro Street), Council confirmed a Rate of 
Change of 0.0005 percent was acceptable and that the guidelines regarding Rate of Change 
were not applicable. 
 
Staff in the Housing Centre are currently preparing a report to Council on City-wide Rate of 
Change issues and it is expected that report will be ready for submission to Council later this 
fall. 
 
For additional background relating to “Rate of Change”, see Appendix “A” 

PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT 

The new residential development proposed on this site would consist of a five-storey building 
containing a total of five residential units and would involve the demolition of an existing 
Heritage “B” Multiple Conversion Dwelling.  The existing building, according to City records 
was constructed as a single-family dwelling but was converted over time and at one point 
contained a total of 9 residential units (5 housekeeping units, 3 sleeping units, and one  
self-contained dwelling unit). 
 
The applicant’s original proposal was to retain the existing building and to provide a         
four-storey addition at the rear.  The building was to have three residential units in the 
retained portion and four new dwelling units in the addition.  This proposal was reviewed by 
staff and discussed in the community through a public open house.  The conclusion on this 
proposal was that any attempts to retain the building and add on to it to make it 
economically feasible to retain would have significant view and massing impacts on the 
neighbouring properties.   
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As a result, the Director of Planning, with support from Heritage staff agreed that a proposal 
for a new building, that would better respond to the view impacts on the adjacent properties, 
would be a more supportable proposal.    
 
As a result, the applicant abandoned the original scheme and re-submitted the current 
proposal.  The Director of Planning is generally supportive of the new proposal, however a 
number of Design Conditions would need to be met prior to the issuance of the development 
permit.  The two partners involved in the development intend to occupy two of the proposed 
units so it is important to them that the impact of the new building will not have negative 
impacts on the neighbouring properties . 
 
Appendix B details the statistical “Rate of Change” in the West End area . 
 
If approved, this proposal will result in the decrease of rental units by 0.043 percent of that 
which existed as of January of 2005, being approximately one year prior to the time this 
application was submitted.  The “Rate of Change” in this RM-5A area would not be in 
compliance to the zero percent limit that was imposed by Council back in 1995, but would  
represent a very small percentage of change from the overall number of rental units in this 
area. 
 
With respect to the “opinion of tenants” issue, when the applicant took possession of the 
existing building in June of 2005, there were 7 tenants in the building.  Several tenants have 
left voluntarily and currently there are 3 tenants remaining in the building, all of whom are 
on a monthly rental basis.  The applicant’s submission, which is attached as Appendix “C”, 
describes the arrangements and offers of assistance that have been made to the tenants by 
the property owners. 
 
HOUSING CENTRE COMMENTS 
 
The development potential in the new downtown neighbourhoods such as Downtown South, 
False Creek and Coal Harbour will soon be built out.  Few development sites remain and 
developers are starting to look for opportunities elsewhere in downtown.  Until recently there 
was very little interest in the West End.  Much of the housing in the West End districts is 
rental and the value of rental housing as an investment has generally exceeded the 
redevelopment value of the sites.  Development interest in the West End is starting to 
increase, with most of the interest in redeveloping the few remaining rooming houses in the 
neighbourhood.  The redevelopment of the rooming houses result in the loss of a limited 
numbers of units but the units, mainly rooms, are the most affordable in the West End.  The 
rents in the 8 rooms and 1 self-contained unit in 1550 Harwood averaged $440.00/month.        
The 1550 Harwood Street project is the first of these proposals to come forward, and only 8 
rental units have been lost (due to a fire) in the West End since 2000.  The other proposals 
currently under review would result in the loss of up to a further 22 units. 
 
The West End rooming houses are not designated as Single Room Accommodation (SRA) as the 
SRA By-law only covers the Downtown South, Central Business District and the Downtown 
Eastside where most of the single room occupancy stock is located, and the Rate of Change 
regulation is the City’s primary tool for controlling the loss of rental in the West End.  The 
Rate of Change is set at zero in the West End and any loss of rental housing requires that 
mitigation be considered and the proposal reported to Council for advice.   
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Where the Rate of Change is exceeded, the Development Permit Board is to consider 
positively those proposals that: 
 
1. attempt to provide accommodation for present residents in the neighbourhood; 
 
2. result in a net increase in the number of units; and 
 
3. provide some moderate or low cost housing. 
 
The proposed redevelopment of 1550 Harwood would result in 5 new units, none of which are 
rental, or moderate or low cost.  It, therefore, fails to satisfy any of the Rate of Change 
guidelines.  However, given the constraints on the project from existing neighbouring 
developments, the fact that 8 of the existing units were rooms, which would be replaced by 
larger self-contained units, and the small size of the site (44 ft. by 131 ft. or 5,765 sq. ft.) it 
would be difficult for any proposed project to satisfy these guidelines.  The Rate of Change 
guidelines do not contemplate payment-in-lieu for projects that do not or cannot satisfy the 
guidelines and the proponent has not offered to make a cash contribution to the Affordable 
Housing Fund. 
 
It is important to note that the Rate of Change guidelines only apply if a density above the 
outright is sought.  In the case of 1550 Harwood, the density proposed is 1.4 FSR compared to 
an outright of 1.0 FSR.  If the project is rejected because it cannot satisfy the Rate of Change 
guidelines, an outright project may be pursued which would result in the loss of the existing 
rental units and their replacement by even fewer condominiums. 
 
The Rate of Change regulations and guidelines are currently under review and will be 
reported to Council in the next couple of months.   

CONCLUSION 

The Director of Planning is prepared to support approval of Development Application Number 
DE410015, subject to a number of conditions which would reduce the visual impacts on 
adjacent neighbours, and also, as current quantitative measures indicate the “rate of 
change” is reasonable in this RM-5A area, staff believe that the guidelines should not apply to 
this particular proposal.  
 
 

* * * * * 










